

1858

FAMILY LETTERS

Danbury Conn 3rd - 1838.

I am permitted to wish you all a
happy New Year, once more, hoping you are as com-
municative as circumstances will admit; that is my feeling
at this time; I was extremely disappointed that I did
not receive a letter from you, informing me of
Henry's health, a privilege I fear has ^{been} lost to
misfortune his removal to ^{from} New York, I hope & pray
it is not as bad as I ^{have} feared how very patient
I have waited until the steamer arrived I
was very anxious to hear of him, and was certain
you would not neglect to inform me, I presume
you must have been unexpectantly detained in some
way, I depend on his being under your kind pro-
tection, which is a consolation to me, O'Thomas
only think how it grieves me ^{though}, I endeavour to
brace up the best I can. I trust your family are
in the enjoyment of good health as we are at this
time, great is the blessing, I hope your desires
may be crowned by the R.R. coming your way
then you will come and settle here use your own

I shall hope to hear by the next I. For now, for恐怕 a full answer to my letter. We have had a most pleasant winter, so far though ~~we must expect it cold soon.~~

I frequently think of your little boys, & should like to see them. Do write off Mr. Hinton's lines on Lam D. likewise what has become of ~~the man who sold the house to us~~ ~~the man who sold us the house~~. ~~He~~ ~~is~~ ~~now~~ ~~dead~~ ~~and~~ ~~has~~ ~~been~~ ~~sick~~ ~~for~~ ~~some~~ ~~time~~ ~~now~~ ~~and~~ ~~is~~ ~~now~~ ~~very~~ ~~sick~~ ~~and~~ ~~cannot~~ ~~live~~ ~~long~~ I am very sorry for him.

My dear Aunt, Priscilla & Angelina are pretty well at present

It is near ten O'clock. I will close as I have but little to communicate, not for want of room. I recommend you all to the protection of divine Providence. Give my love to Henry tell him I shall always think of him out of his wretched trouble to know how he gets on. Your Mother

R Whaley

Newport le 9 Janvier 1855.

Ma chère Amie,

Je viens à la fin de quelques lettres de tout la
provincie, du 2^e Nov. 54. et la seconde et dernière
du 9 Dec. je commençais à croire que tu me voulais
plus l'écrire ou que tu étais malade et t'etay
bien décidée à me pas attendre plus long temps et
dées d'écrire à S.-G. pour avoir des tes nouvelles
aussi ma chère fille ne t'avais plus de retour
de long-temps dans m'écrive et fais bien faire que
je ne me contente pas d'une lettre tous les
six mois. il m'en faut une tous les mois...
Dernièrement, tu m'as beaucoup négligé; il y avait
six mois que je n'avais reçu de lettre de toi. Mais
je te pardonne cette fois ci pourvu que tu me
me néglige plus à l'avenir. je suis bien avec que
les affaires soient si mauvaises à S.-G. parce que
cela décida ton mari à quitter au Vilain pays
qui me fait tant de peur pour toi. et
j'espere que le Bill passera par les chemins de
fer et que nous serons encombrés pour ne plus
nous quitter. le jour où Dieu me fera la grâce
de te revoir sera le plus beau de ma vie.
Dis à ton mari qu'il faut que il fasse tout
son possible pour revenir le plus tôt que il

Sera un bon pouvoir & qu'il fera plaisir à fils
d'une vieille Lady connue Ma chère Anna
je sens que je ne pourrai pas long temps d'appa-
-ter le fatigued'enseigner car lorsque je
n'ai que quatre élèves c'est quelquefois
plus que je m'empêris faire heureusement que
de Jérusalem l'élève a été doux. Mais voilà
qu'il commence à meiger et nous nous attendons
à ce quel hiver ^{être} Jérusalem. Mais il est trop
tard de pris dans l'ennemi. On espere que les
affaires vont reprendre au printemps: il me
semble que l'on vit toujours dans l'esperance
dans ce monde! Mon esperance à moi, C'est
de te revoir bientôt Ma chère fille, alors je
me croirai au bout de mes peines. Dieu
nous fasse la grâce que tout cela d'accomplice
maintenant, il faut que je t'annonce le
mariage de Mr. Garland, qui est maintenant
Mr. Dargin son mari tient un Livery Stable
et plus personne que elle. Que penser tu d'une
fille comme celle? Je crois très fort qu'il l'a
épousée pour son argent et qu'elle p
Cherie pour elle whistte.

Charley Brown me prie de te dire that
he feels very much flattered that my grand-sons
named after his honorable brother and hopes
the next, will be named after him and affred
lends his name take many twists and turns to his

sister. Our
Amelia ne
elle est très f
aide à faire
de vivre, avec
il va bon petit
chien Anna que
faut que je
cher potots
y a à New York
beaucoup de
envie de les
d'être bien
amis à
du fond de de

P.S. Amelia
tous tes amies
font leurs

for a few

mother. And how many to his father? None.

Anna
tandis qu'il
que je
me fuis

Anilie ne s'est pas bien portée cette hiver elle est très faible. Le Dr lui a donné du Sulphate d'Acide à prendre et à présent il n'y a plus moyen de vivre avec elle. Peter est toujours le même et nient que il va son petit bâtonneau de chemin. Maintenant ma Maria. Voilà où Anna que j'en ai plus rien à t'apprendre, il faut que je finisse ma lettre. embrasse tes deux petits Marmots pour moi dis-leur que il y a à Newyork une grande dramaturge qui les aime beaucoup une Tante et un oncle qui ont grande espérance envie de les voir et qui ils me manqueront pas mon. C'est d'être bien gâtés. Encore une fois adieu mes amis à ton mari. Nous nous embrassons tous du fond de notre Coeur.

Ja mère affectueuse

V. E. Learney.

S.S. Anilie te plaint que tu me lui échis pas. tu as une tendre amitié et surtout une bonne tenue il a fait leurs amitiés.

elle p

is that
and I said
and hopes
and agreed.
it was to his

My dear friends

Wednesday July 3rd 1855.

Having accidentally received
a larger lot of eggs than I have
use for at present, I take the liberty of
offering you to try and dispose of a
few of them, as best I can do. You will
oblige me who is truly "a friend to
you and yours."

H. French

Yrs
Mrs H. French
San Diego

Brooklyn February 3 - 1858

My Dear Children

It is quite useless to attempt to describe my feelings after waiting the arrival of three friends coming to inquire concerning my unfortunate boy which only augments my unhappy disappointment. I know not what to write I have written two letters in answer to your first generous information you must have written. I have noticed and it you never could keep me in such cruel suspense or you certainly forget my kind solicitude for you all as you both know full well how any time I should feel; a friend kindly handed me a San Fr. — news paper which contained the atrocious deed with particulars, I was much relieved to read it was his left arm, sad indeed under any circumstances how happy I should be to hear what my poor boy intends to do, I begged you in my last to inform me what your thought would be the best method to pursue as I am willing to do all I can for him, I hear he is about to write to his family, I hope and trust you will write me the earliest opportunity all that can be communicated and the reason why you have not written to me before.

and relieve my troubled mind. O! what would tempt me to treat you thus, your letters are always kind when they come which is a comfort to me, as I love to hear of your welfare.

I should have thought, Henry would have written to his mother at least John & Harriett family are quite well, with myself and your friends in general. I hope and trust the Dr's will come your way so let me know as soon as possible thought you are so well situated in your great establishment. I hope and pray you are all well and happy enjoying good health, with your dear little boys how I should like to see them. Our winter has been most delightful so moderate. Thomas; I would like to receive a letter a fortnight you each month, I do not think, I ask so much of my child one and all of us feel sadly at a loss to know the cause of your silence, as each stood tiptoe on the arrival of the gal^a mail. How difficult to endure such suspense.

Old Mrs Brown, is in her 91 year I cannot refrain naming her as she inquires so kindly about you Do give my love to Thomas they are a kind family Harriett was here a few days ago, quite lively My Dear I must close, your Sister and brother of course love to you all.

Your Affectionate Mother
R. Whaley

My Dear Son Henry

I am indeed very sorry that I could not hear from you amidst your misfortune so write and inform me what you intend to do I trust your brother will do all for you that lies in his power as he feels

extremely for you
I am thankful it
was as kind as
do write a D. the
very young for
is very ill when
your family etc
Sometimes I
well of him the
I do not think
in his memory

tempted me to write extremely for your deliveration. and so do we all I do assure you
they come I am thankful it is not your right arm I hope Thomas
was as kind as he could be and will continue to be so
as often at least do write and tell me all about it Mrs Flout says she's
off and yours very sorry for you and her daughter likewise Mrs S.
comes your way is very ill her life dispeased off I hope you have hear of
also well better your family lately is Anna in any business.
you are all well sometimes I think you may go in with it Do think
little boy. well of him he is a good brother very sorry for you
most delightful I do not think he would advise you wrong may God
bless a father in his many protect you against that bad man
of my child
cause of your
fat-mails.

Your Mother

Rae Whaley

Brooks is in here
nearly about you
earlier was here
for your Sister

Dear Mother
Whaley

that I could
do write and
our brother
as her feels

Steamer Senator
San Pedro
March 5th 1838.

My Dear Mr Shale. I send to you
Ringgold your dog, which you were
so kind as to allow me to keep
through the winter. I return
him according to my promise,
with many thanks for his use.
I am on my way to San Bernar-
dino, and shall probably be in
San Diego next Steamer day.
I want much to go down this
trip, but have not time. I heard
from you the other day through
Maj. Ringgold, and am
extremely sorry to hear that you

March 4, 1858

Rachel to Thomas Whaley
re: Death of Thos Jr -
{January 1, 1858 or
thereabouts

Dear Son I am sorry to inform you that
my son Henry died at Brooklyn on the
2^d instant in Brooklyn March 4th 1853

Dear Son I am sorry to inform you that
my son Henry died at Brooklyn on the
2^d instant in Brooklyn March 4th 1853
and I am sorry to inform you of the loss of your dear
little Henry, I sympathize with you.
The Lord giveth & the Lord taketh away
and blessed be the name of the Lord.
I know you must both feel his loss sadly
I am glad you had his blessing, I will try
to see it. I trust your brother recovered from
your cold, please that Frank is go-
ing to be a fine boy may he be a blessing
to your brother and hope he will be spared until
your letter has been long looked for, not a line
from either since you informed of Henry's
dead sister I was much cross I wrote to you
to inform you of your ideas what would be better
now as you was the best judge was he void
of family I would soon take him home and make

him comfortable as long as he would stay with me, I have received a letter from Mr. Hill thinks he had better come some days there is however, the first he says if he is living alone I was very sorry to recd it as I intended you to take him to your home, forgetting all facts delay, I beg of you, what is the use of her going difficulty I knew he would feel very bad indeed and could not attain from feeling just gratitude will not harm her however, she has great trouble to say what is to be done do say what is to be done inform me without "to you" as a brother" for your kindness, To take Mr. Hill has not made any propositions to me to him however write it is decided what is to be done I am quite at a loss to ascertain the views under the impress on what one and all "more my heart he writes. Mrs. Hill said she intended to open a few to him in his trouble but that he is ruined for her. By Mrs. Hill she does not speak of her other self "but does not know what to do" as the fact is she chickens, he must often think of them, it is much to him is not good well; quite unable to work as to be nothing, only thinks of it and you do write on Spencerville cause him pain, he does not know what to do in his present situation in this life little I despair of getting Mr. Light however says the Dr attend fine state, only however follows on attending him, notwithstanding he can plead of any one, but I do not like him to live alone in his present state of mind. However, you may think it far remote, before you do I will now go to the mine - What has become of the find white peacock feathers most times of the bird's plumes Washington Mrs. Annie was to return to Salley

first of April, I know not how true it is John do say what is to be done without a better chance for him the exp. on in Washn. I do say what is to be done inform me without to him she has made trouble enough yet till I meet you we are send one to you & family

you are prospering, how do you like your new place there I hope very well. I hope you will see Mr. and have a talk with him. I hope not to tell you any bad news next time. May God bless you and yours is my hope.

Your Mother.

I did not know Hillman before, I used to know him, you may think it far remote, before you do I will now go to the mine - What has become of the find white peacock feathers most times of the bird's plumes Washington Mrs. Annie was to return to Salley meeting you we are send one to you & family

Mr Thomas Whaley
San Diego

Re: Property in
Central Park - How it
is to be secured for
family - by mortgage

Brooklyn April 14th 1858

Dear Son Thomas

How it gives me pain
to steamer after steamer arrives but no
letter for me you certainly cannot think
I cease to wish to hear from you, I don't
know your opinion of Flem coming
home, why not inform me I trust you
and family are well, though you have
been afflicted; According to my request
Amelia, brought your infant witness it
represents a fine looking child, a great loss
to you both, but be comforted.

Thomas do write and inform me of
all particulars, I heard Annie was to
leave for Cal^{if} in April, but cannot say
for certain, I wish I knew. I hope you
and her are quite friendly only think

Sometime loss she had met with I cannot think she died in this place. John has
left without their horses standing to my side made a purchase of a horse & colt.
I hope you think of it and treat him kind giving me a message at six percent if
what would I do if I thought you could not want this "intirely. There is a right & wrong
little on nothing for him. Not so much for it, sister, rather how much to pay off
I hear you. Thomas, you know I wrote on some time giving me understanding
that the Commissioners had taken the lots
one of the horses in the final part ..
I applied for the award \$100, the
Commissioners said it took to work out
decided "consequently" it had been a great
loss and ~~wanted~~ ^{wanted} to give it out of court
and I was anxious my little children
might have the sold "of the way
they are expenses of gas or gas assessment.
It road very perfectly horses and two
horses which would train \$200
first \$50 for each one the Liege,
informs me I cannot deduct from the
value of your father, therefore each
child can give a message "on the
estate and take \$50 as it will bring
you miles I shall write to them about the

Berwick Cal

May 17th 1858.

My Dear Mrs Whaley:

News from the States has finally decided me to leave for the coast immediately, and I shall go on the Stephens on the 20th inst. I regret extremely that I am unable to visit San Diego before leaving, but it is now impossible for me to do so - I was very much disappointed in not getting a letter from you by the last mail from San Diego. I wanted very much to hear from you and fully expected a letter. I hope you are not forgetting your old friend. Perhaps you have too much else to occupy you, so that you find no time for me. How are you? And how are yours? You must give me a long letter and tell me all about yourself. You well know how you can make your letters interesting to me - I wish you to direct to me at Waterbury Conn "Care

of S. W. Kellogg" - As I was riding down town the other day, I met the express agent, who told me that there was a package in the Express office for me. I went in great haste to the office, thinking I should find something from you - Imagine my surprise on finding my own picture! I had not expected to receive it in Benicia. By the way, how is your own nice little picture? I presume that it had not yet started on its mission? How do your Mrs Whaley, pass the time in S. D. I suppose when not going to the theatre, or some of the other places of amusement, you are devotting your time to your little family. What would I give to see you now - I very much wish to return to San Diego, and shall by all means do so in the fall when I return from the States. I shall then hope to get stationed there again. Gladly would I repeat those delightful rides, and pleasant interview with my dear friend - Truly there are some pleasant bright spots in our chequered life, to which our hearts

Don't fail to write

revert with pleasure, however great the sorrow
that the scenes are past. How is your health,
and how are you getting along this Spring?
Do tell me all about yourself, and of all things
that you know will most interest me. I
shall look for a letter by the first mail
after I get east. How I dread the long
voyage! But it will soon be over, and I
shall soon be back in Cal^{if} all right.

I am perhaps slightly superstitious, and I have
procured a "charmed talisman" which I wear
around my neck, and which of course, will protect
me while I wear it. I shall be absent about
five or six months - I may possibly return
by the overland route to S. D. I would
now go that way, were it two mos. earlier. It
is now too late to cross the deserts. There
have been several parties lately in Benicia
but I have been to none of them - I think
that I am getting to be an "old fogey" as I care
nothing about parties now, and I seldom
leave the garrison except to take a ride. How
is dear little Franky? With regards to you. W. I am
as ever Your most sincere and faithful
My Annie E. W.
S. D.

Friend J. Fellowes

how it will give me had he only died when he
was young I never should have had the pang I now
feel I wrote to him at the same I did you of a
five hundred dollars, as I want to assist all that can
help him in particular but, you received the letter if
not, inform me, I will write again.

I trust your darling boy is in good health, rendered
more valuable by the loss of his little brother but God
takes when he pleases no respect shown, may he bless us all
My mind is too troubled to write more at present
All my love to you and family. God bless you all

Your affectionate Mother
S. Whaley

Mr Swan died on the 15th of March, 1861 and I went
to his funeral, 78 years of age he was laid out most
handsome in a splendid coffin hands plates of the best he looked
very natural I forgot if I wrote about it last time

Brooklyn May 3- 1858

Dear Son Thomas.

I am about to write, but I can
hardly tell to what purpose, as I get no response to
any letters, let me write of what I may. Is it right to be
wrong that you should treat me thus? I have written to you
concerning it if you do not wish to give your opinion you
might say so, and write to that effect I wont desire you
to do that which is not compatible with your feelings, but
in mercy and goodness sake never keep your Mother
in such cruel suspense. Yes cruel indeed when a
Penn and Paper would relieve her troubled mind.
Look upon your surviving Son, he at a distance
you craved knowledge of his health and prosperity. I
was regardless of your earliest requests; what would
you say, even if he could inform ^{me} but did not still more
would your anxiety be increased? Only consider
all the Steamers arrive no letter for me in answer to my
many, last week John's wife had a letter from Annie say
ing, Henry would be home, thus I catch a little informa
tion, God know I should be glad to see him once more
but only one wom, how can I endure the sight

Bonnie Barracks, Benicia Cal.
May 1st 1858.

My dear Mrs. Whaley. Your kind letter of April 21st came by the last mail, and I truly believe that if you knew what pleasure it gave me to hear from you, you would, in your kindness of heart, write to me by every mail. But while I rejoice to hear from you, my dear friend, I assure you that I am much pained to hear that you have been sick, and are still in delicate health. When I remember the many pleasant hours spent in your society (as I often do with pleasure) I can hardly understand that one so full of vivacity, and life, and joyousness, can be so unfortunate as to be afflicted with sickness and pain - I hope ere this you are well again, and that your life will ever be free from pain and sorrow - Happiness is but the absence of pain, and I trust that you have yet in store a long bright future of happiness - You deserve

the sunniest smile of fortune; and I doubt
not the frivle Goddess will yet shower
her favors upon you abundantly. If
you have suffered pain and affliction
for the past few months, let radiant
hope dispel the sombre clouds, and point
to a life of happy years to come - Well
I know, that no one but a mother can
fully understand your loss of little
Tommy - But it is well that we should
always apply philosophy, as far as possible, to
this life's trials.

Three or four gentlemen have
just come in and as I must have this ready
for the mail in a few minutes I will close
by giving another page, notwithstanding their
talking. Of course it will be uninteresting,
but I will try and not put in what
they are talking about.

Since leaving you
in March, I have been pretty well, though
not as well as in San Diego. I have been
constantly here with my company, with
the exception of two days in San Fran-

You ask about my going east. I now
think that I shall not go till the latter
part of summer, if indeed, I go this
year. There are reasons why I do not wish

to go at present. I may however go later in
the Summer, though as I do not wish to
be in the North in the winter, it is quite
probable that I shall wait till next
Spring - I shall hope, and endeavour to
visit Southern Cal^{if} during the Summer.
I want very much to see my very dear
friend Mrs. Whaley - Will she not come to
San Francisco during the Summer? I
hope so indeed - I assure you that nothing
will give me greater pleasure - Try by
all means to write to me by return
mail, and give me long, long, letters -
You are the only one that I expect
to hear from in San Diego and I rely
upon you to learn of all that will
interest me - Remember me to
all my few friends and believe me
Very faithfully
Your true friend
J. C. Kellogg

Mrs Annie E. Whaley
San Diego
Cal.

P. S. Be kind enough to tell me all about yourself - You
know me well enough to know what will most
interest me - J. K.

Brooklyn May 19th 1868

Dear Son Thomas.

I received a letter from your brother last Steamer, informing me that he had decided to return home, only he had that day received a letter from his family that they would have in May from Cala, therefore he would ~~have~~ been compelled, to defer until he heard from them again I am quite unable to say what will be for the best, John thinks he may do better here, or in N.Y. there must be funds, somewhere, for him to return home, board near a year with his family, and then return to Cala for my part I disapprove of her conduct altogether though I did not tell him so, as I feel very sorry for him I cannot blame him for wishing to be with his family good fellow I could see to him better if he was here though he has not asked me for money

He did not say a word about my proposition, I wonder he very sorry that he should know that he was writing from a change and tell him nothing he has any business to attend but rather omitted the time before this he spoke if he omits his family I hope he will be fortunate what a sad pity that he has met with such a misfortune. Thomas why do you not write to inform me of all particulars concerning your

affairs I think you must feel very sorry for him what can he occupy his time in he says his arm is sealed up general health good but he must feel very sad he ought to be very certain that he can succeed on farm wife he support his family but all this they cannot consider I am anxious how to calculate for eat.

Amelia said when she brought you back like myself, that your wife was coming this summer have you decided to let her and son take a trip Thomas as you write so seldom I wonder I can find any subject to fill my letter how do you like your new partner well I hope I do not know how you might like I trust dear not with any place of working or care playing

I would be very sorry that he should know I ask you the question I did not know he spent two times this is in confidence I sometimes think you avoid writing home John is not very well from several days a bad cold and sore throat with me self, the weather is wet and bad here from week past, I like the house and shop, the less furniture, the less money from his family to live he has telephone the Do you live in your own house and do you fine it out to the Waggon Road, as you wrote, you might do if they give you your rent I think you are all in the enjoyment of health and happiness this world cannot afford a occasion lessening I suppose little Frank grows fine see him grandmama wants to see him my love to you and family

Your Mother & Baby

Mr Thomas Whaley
San Diego
California

Brockly June 18th 1858

Dear Son. Thomas

I write as it were by instinct
as my patience is exhausted waiting to hear
from you) two summers ago Henry wrote to inform
me that he had decided to come home only that
his wife and family was to join him which would de-
tain two months longer since which he has not written
a line I cannot comprehend my silence silence
as I crave nothing from thee, but, on the contrary
I have to say Johns children have the, measles, Mary
has been very ill Dizam little hope is on the mind others
doing pretty well so far in bed as yet the disease per-
vails very much at this time.

Thomas I inform you that your fathers Monument
is completed it is a very beautifully made
all raised letters a fine base you will be pleased
with it I am sorry you never returned an answer
to my many remarks on the subject.

I trust your family is quite well have you given
up the idea of coming home soon.

should like you to do so write how you are, how

are making out I cannot understand what he means
he says his means are limited yet talks of coming home
or his family spending all this takes money but I
do not hear all that, I am willing to aid him in his
misfortune but he has not answered my proposition about
the Pub it is think strange of it. I have had a
bad cold of late getting rather better it has been a
damp cold spring. I hope to get letters soon my
love to you all. Tell Frank grandma wants to
see him very much, hope he is a good boy May the
Lord bless us all your affectionate Nathan.

B. Whaley

John W. Whaley

Brooklyn July 18th 1863

Dear Son Thomas, I have written to you and will do so again & you will receive it in time. In truth, most of what I said in my last was in haste, therefore, to trust, next, as if it had ever been done. I did not say that I had written to you before, because I had not done so. I am quite well off for money now therefore I feel more like writing. John's health, for one circumstance shortly, took something in the way of Telegraphy which makes him to return by Washington rather than we will have. Anna is gone over going there, wrote back no thoughts in her own handwriting after paying Mr. John a visit where he has matched no any letter from her in some time, last week she heard from her Mother who did not receive Anna's, so what is to pay. I can't tell as to first who may have concluded not to go. John's children has all had the measles, which has caused them full work. Thomas, I hope yours & your family are quite well down here. Had exceedingly warm weather, rather more moderate at this time. I would prefer, Henry, coming home as soon as I could attend to him better; or that is my mind if you do not say what you think of it, or what you would say in the best way. This climate lessens the need to do much the pain of his disease I am certain. I wish him to do all for the best, who very sorry for his impatience and quite willing to assist him only I want to know what has become of the part of P. Dr Bacon draft as I have had to pay the note to Flintoff. I know you did wrong to place all the money in H hands instead of mine, but he was your

I told him I paid the note therefore whoever had the rest of
the draft had the money that was intended to pay off the note
~~if all is paid I do not doubt it~~
~~John says you are the one to ascertain, I do not want you to speak~~
~~to her about it, perhaps, that is been to pay her expences of late~~
~~at all events she know what I can make out is in no taste to go~~
~~poor fellow he appeared to very greatly ovit, but do not name any~~
~~expencme to make him unhappy I beg of you as who knows the~~
~~end I am fearfull he is but tollerably situated I was in hopes~~
~~you would have invited him to have remained with you awhile~~
~~as his trouble was great, how gladly would I before have secured~~
~~him as he was alwys a good boy but I am his Mother I hope~~
~~you to lost a sight of that but I am not Mother to his wife~~
~~I seldom think of her I will try to write more spelly soon~~
~~He is living and doing and what he work at and if he is com-~~
~~fortable in all respects he writes that he depended on sales~~
~~of what you say doing as well as you who has a part over~~
~~I do not understand how that is in Klossie little Frank~~
~~I see more of John children as I live in the next street to~~
~~them his little ones think their grandmather is very crog~~
~~but they are very tame some I do not want them to come near to well~~
~~so that they would impise on poor graney no no they are good~~
~~children when they come to see me John is doing but toll-~~
~~erable his little business is poor at present one comfort he has~~
~~a comfortable house & is kept from work he is a steady man~~
~~keeps his family comfortable I hope your health is better~~
~~I expect that you are unwell at times May the Lord~~
~~preserue and prosper you Your affectionate Mother R. M.~~

~~noon of the same day~~
of my mother's Brooklyn July 5th 1858

Dear Son Thomas.

I received yours of May 2^d
I am indeed sorry to learn that you have
been ill I begin to think you will not
be selling out and returning home if it de-
pends on the A. R. coming your way well my
hopes are all in vain I am sorry Flunys has
decided to remain in San Diego, I think he
might have gained employment and set
himself down, and then I could help him
and minister to his wants, I do not think
he will stay there always, only until she
gets dissatisfied. Thomas, you say you tell
Franky about his Grand Mamma in Cal,
and his Grandmamma, in Brooklyn to
be quite a boy by this time.
I trust your wife will be brought most
mercifully through her approaching trial
and I shall have a little grand daughter as
I suppose a girl would be most acceptable
to you all. I was pleased to read that
John was making a living poor fellow

If there's any difference between them before, or what will he do to himself, I believe they are to write John, one less way is the husband. I believe it's great conduct to insist so go back, she ought to have some man to deal with they would have her a lesson.

Johnas I wrote you the particulars concerning the \$500 I do not think I can derive from the wife, the Lawyer said not it was largely my fault in for of that in cash but what

can be done

You do appear to stand in great need why do you go so far beyond your means you appear always in trouble having

I should say the world here. Other manner buying in egg, what kind of a place could you get for \$500. Then comes taxes and insurance. John has known the most com-
monal plan his interest hopes and incomes amount to \$500 per month I must have the money on that will insure me the interest has \$500 & etc, when I call upon it at first handy ledgerable the first is sometime but a little mind who sits on the furniture not you will find you have made a nice collection to buy any house and taking John in off less than \$200 you

of homes I should have been written more concerning your position Management. There same things you did write about the kiss the spring from whence all flows I want neglect to remember his reasons he did not forget his son Thomas, I do advise you never simply forget him. I hope you will quite satisfied with what I write as I know you must be fully aware of my intention towards my children my idea is to help my own, others must do the same that is natural you know its wise it is. Thomas

now you! Did you let the big iron cast Company have you establishment his gentle man like day we have very warm weather John didn't have ice four had the most Many like this day hand off all well at that time my writing is when you are understanding. Please write and at time May God be merciful to us all. Mine Mother R. P.

feel unables to give you all the information

Mrs Kealey

Ten Dugo July the 29th 1888

Madam - in consequence of me washing your
Clothes and I working all large pieces, for you I thought that paid
would allow me the same now for large and smaller so I
will wash the child's things @ 100/- per dozen, you know that
I get 2 Dollars for washing clothes and will have to leave b. Kinsley
backs $\frac{1}{2}$ doz of clothes against shirts & I would come up to you
if I had time but you know the way it is worth not

I remaind Most Respectfully

Mary S. Bradford

Dear Friends - No Charlie's place
will have you any place
with impunity. It's a look
at present - or are
you permanently settled
in San Simeon?

Please write to San
Simeon - we are anxious to know
what you are doing
with your family
and your mother
and your wife
and your son.
Good bye - you may
please excuse my
hurried & rough
and please in good health
with love to all mine,
and I hope if we can ever
have that pleasure again

With much love to you
all remain as ever
Mary L. Johnson

Letter reached me sometime in the
latter part of April, and I have
intended writing to you every
day since, but soon after it
came to hand we went to San
Fran. and soon after our return
we were turned out everything
we had in the world was crushed
about three weeks ago the fire broke
out - about one in the morning

and we truly expected nothing of you, however, than my
best regards for the sake of your friend and wished to tell
you how glad I am to have my husband you so much, what a good time
has been had by all of us since we were last here if we were only
badly and we could probably start me over to pack off in just
for the winter - springing about - before you remembered that before
we left home when you very long you were experiencing a little
rest - it's not so bad gone to have mind and that you don't mind - and
that you're not - nothing will you say
that you're not - dear to think of affliction. Friend in the little room
my husband's going away without a letter from him
one of the things it will be after for him
if so there is but little money no one could help but agree
he has now - and if the he is pleased
with the country with his - he will think he was in a more interesting
return for the in a short time little pillow. no hope that there would
of an end - much in favor of the - may be spared to you
next comes in at - least of all to - give him a frank & full
going up there, I think it will
mechlan business.

is now a hope, or at any rate "coming events" do not
"cast their shadows before." We have been
married nearly nine months, it does not
seem so long, my married life has been very
happy, and if the future has as much
happiness in store for me as the past
had, I will be content.

A friend of Mr. George Simonds' told me the other day that he
had heard of his death, I hope indeed that it was a false rumor
it would pain me to hear his death.
Jeff is well and sends his best
to yourself and dear husband says
tell the Robes to have the pleasure of
meeting you both again. Mr Butterfield
~~family~~ ~~and~~ ~~on~~ ~~the~~ ~~way~~ ~~to~~ ~~Calif~~.

Please give my kindest love & all
my friends I think of them all quite
often. My regards to Mrs. Whalen and a kiss
to dear little Dorothy from mine, Candy.
Pray me all the young dear Friends and
please write soon

New York le 24 Août 1858

Machin Anna

J'ai reçu deux lettres distinctes par le Steamship ^{le 21} ~~le 21~~. L'autre m'est parvenue deux jours après. La Daguerriotype et les vingt dollars me sont parvenues en bon état, mais je n'ai pas encore reçu ton portrait que le ~~Captaine Bogart~~ devait laisser chez Mr. Edw. H. Miller. Et comme tu me le manderas dans tes deux lettres à bord du Steamship très dispendieux, je t'assure. Nous n'avons pas vu son nom parmi la liste des passagers, ce qui nous fait croire qu'il est peut-être resté en route ou enfin je l'espere qu'au prochain Steamship il l'apportera. Attendant, je te renvoie de ce que tu me m'as envoyé. Car comme j'étais l'an dernier, tout va bien avec nous dans ce moment. Cela qui me donne du courage C'est que je suis sûre que j'ai une fille qui ne m'a pas abandonnée dans ma vieillesse.

Il faut que je te dise que je suis très fière de mon petit-fils il a l'air de bon le charpentier il est tout le temps sur sa chaise ! il a les plus petits bras que j'ai jamais vu pour un garçon et il a le portrait de son père. L'autre Charpentier que tu t'es envoiée il avait tout droit et très joli. Il avait une figure angelique. M. Poirier a fait prendre cette Daguerriotype la peinture, quand on a

pas très bien réussi. Dis à notre cher petit Frank - mais
que sa Grand-maman, son oncle, et sa tante l'embrassent pour
et disent qu'il est un très bon garçon des s'être si bien. J'entre
tenir pour nous. et que quand il viendra à New-York - ~~étages~~
(dimanche que ce soit bientôt) ton oncle lui montrera ~~pour~~ ^{deux}
à faire une jolie petite croisière ~~af~~ ^{af} avec ma chère fille Mary
qui je recevrai de tes nouvelles par le prochain steamer ~~des~~
Car d'après ce que tu me l'écris, tu devrais être à combien ~~des~~
maintenant bien. Chère Anna, je regrette sincèrement de ne pas
avoir écrit plus tôt. C'est que les temps passent si rapidement. Nous
jouerons avec toi tout utile, mais je pense que avec
le temps n'est pas loin où nous ferons encore une de ces
sorties économiques pour le plaisir. Nous quitterons ~~à~~ ^à toute
je suis partie d'apprendre que ton frère avait été ~~pour~~
~~malade~~ dis-lui que je le félicite de ses bonnes
intention à mon égard. Je dis aussi au Major ~~Hengard~~ ^{Hengard} Elle
que, d'après ce que j'ai, j'avais déjà magasiné la place. Ton
portrait portait et que je suis toute déçue ~~agacée~~. Il
me semble avoir pas reçu ~~à~~ ^à ~~deux~~ ^{deux}
à Paris. J'aurais souhaité trois disagréables séances mais
cher Anna, notre appartement est terrible ~~tout~~ ^{Tout}
ce qui fait qu'en été, il y fait une chaleur ~~à~~ ^à ~~intolerable~~ ^{intolerable} et en hiver, une froideur terrible ~~très~~ ^{très}
la chambre est de 18 pieds de large sur 21 pieds ~~de long~~ ^{de long} ce qui est beaucoup trop grand pour ~~ma~~ ^{ma}
mon confort. Mon voisin ~~peut-être~~ ^{peut-être} dimanche le matin
parlerai. Car j'appréhende de passer encore une ~~long~~ ^{long}
semaine à Paris. L'amitié de laquelle je gagne ~~de~~ ^{de} ~~de~~ ^{de}
l'assurance et puis ~~je~~ ^{je} apprends que les grandes ~~dan~~ ^{dan}

autre maisons après tant, ne valent pas les petites journées
gagnées par ces gens. En parlant de petites maisons, Mr. Heidrich
bien s'est acheté une jolie petite maison en briques à trois
étages à Wilkes-Barre pour trois mille dollars.
Pourquoi ne achetez-vous pas une petite propriété à
votre fille? Pourquoi pas environ? Si vous avez l'assurance de percevoir
peut-être des cinquante dollars, j'aurais pu faire par acheter
une maisonnette que vous auriez été sûrs de retrou-
ver en cas de besoin.

Regrettons avant la visite de Mary Elizabeth ces jours derniers
avec sa mère et son petit enfant. C'est un véritable com-
édie de drame mais elle en a déjà perdu un, de sorte que
tous deux vont être de familiers poilettages qui n'ont
été perdus que trop longtemps.

J'aurai apprendre la mort de Paroline Story
Bengard. Elle est morte ce printemps. Cela pèse sur la mère
qui sont inconsolables.

Tous les amis deobient bien des choses et
demandaient toujours, When is she coming back?
Tous nos bons personnes de la famille qui étaient
à Eastwood (le camp). Mrs. Buchanan (Adèle) demeure
à Brooklyn dans une belle maison et elle est
toujours aussi charmante. Daniel a une
petite fille de trois semaines, le Dr. Max de
Mrs. Durbin (Clara) a mangié de mourir d'une
covidie. Il n'est pas encore mariée. Charles Bowmen est
engagé (à ce qu'il dit). Fred Graham est à l'Asyle
de Bloomingdale. Sa maladie étant devenue trop
malade dangereuse pour le laisser au large. Il s'informe

Toujours de loi et disait I suppose she has
plenty of new things. I must go over there at a
moment axons rencontré John Graham dans
Broadway il y a quelques jours. Il a beaucoup
grossi, il a la figure rouge et bouffie et qui
m'annonçait bien de bonté. Il est toujours le
même étourdi; en nous faisant sortir dans
il a mangié de l'entrevue et une pomme et une
fraise.

La fin me prie de te dire qu'elle trois
après tout que le seul moyen de trouver son
mari, c'est d'aller en Californie. Elle veut
savoir ce que tu en penses. She says she will
take Major Kingold gray headed or white.
Peter will take a squaw! Jackson et moi
prie de porter bien. Moi j'ai un rhume, j'ai
quitté mon lit pour t'écrire parce que C'est
demain que part le steamer. Adieu ma

chère Anna, nous vous embrassons tous
de tout Coeur.

Un très affectueux

J. G. Lawrence

P.S. Tell Mrs Robinson that feel very
greatful to her for the care she takes of
you and that it relieves me of great anxiety.

New York le 19. Août 1858.

Ma chère Anna.

Peter m'a enfin apporté ton Portrait que j'attendais avec tant d'impatience et une lettre datée le 9. Juillet. Je te trouve changeé que que tu aies engrâssé mais plus je te regarde et plus je trouve que le Portrait est ressemblant. Tu es toujours jolie mais tu n'es plus aussi Anna d'autrefois. Je t'ai trouvé un air un peu melancholique les traits un peu tirés. Mais les personnes qui ont vu ton Portrait me disent que tu es toujours la même! Ce qui est un compliment très flattant (car je puis te le dire à présent que tu es marié et que tu es maman sans craindre de te rendre naïve) tu as toujours été très jolie à mes yeux. Tu rappelles-tu chère enfant que j'attachais souvent mes yeux sur toi pendant plusieurs minutes sans pouvoir les ôter? Et tu me disais What do you look at me Mother? Oh bien ma chère fille C'est parce que je te trouvais charmante et mon cœur bœuf saignait de ce que tu m'avais indiqué ma fortune. Mais dis-moi merci. Tu as un mari que te tiendrait de tout. Je voudrais bien que ta pauvre sœur en eut autant. Elle n'a pas ta seconde lettre tu m'écris que j'ai maintenant une jolie petite-fille! Je suis bien fine mais je suis bien plus heureuse d'apprendre que ma chère fille est encore une fois sauvee car ces moments-là sont bons qu'ils

Saints, sont toujours dangereux. Mais que la Providence est singulièrement bonne ehre Anna! de l'avoir fait trouver dans un pays si éloigné; une personne comme M^r Robinson qui, comme tu le dis te vers de Mère dans ces moments-là! Remercie-la de ma part ma chère enfant et dis-lui que je t'en suis très reconnaissante de tous les saints qu'elle a pour toi. Amélie a en beaucoup de joie d'apprendre que notre chère petite fille va enfin épouser le monsieur à qui elle a été promis. J'aurais fait ce plaisir et elle me dit tout le jourz qu'il a été fait. Nous n'étions pas pour revenir bientôt qu'elle préférail. Carter de être auprès de toi que de rester à New York cependant. Je l'aurais fait si j'en avais eu envie mais nous enjouent tant.

J'ai été très malade des rhumatismes je m'ai pris au docteur, et sorti pendant plusieurs semaines. Ça m'était monté dans l'estomac je m'en suis pas encore tout à fait avec quelques difficultés mais je me trouve beaucoup mieux. Amélie ne va pas très bien non plus. Il faut que donne-t-elle à ce portefeuille que je suis devenue très grasse mais ta grande que je me sens moins bien depuis que j'ai tant d'embougoind. J'ai un ventre tout à fait démagique mais ce qui me fait diablement souffrir quand il fait mal! thing. Je ne puis concevoir d'où vient cette graisse. Je suis venue, et si la fortune m'était venue aussi vite que cela j'en aurais été beaucoup plus contente important. J'ai répondu à ta première lettre par laquelle tu m'envoies le Daguerreotype de mon cher petit Frantz qui est le portrait de son père, et et les

ce est vingt-dollars en quatre piées d'or d'ont je te dis
un bien obligé ma chère enfant car je n'ai rien de
bon tout à faire et été et je n'ai aucun espoir d'avoir
mieux des élèves avant le ^{mai} de novembre, et Peter qui en
est fait à peine pour t'acheter des vêtemens. Il a toujours
eu espoir que les affaires vont mieux et qu'il sera mieux
aussi prochain qu'il pourra trouver une autre place, mais
il en attendant le temps se passe et on avance pas.

jeudi J'ai encore une nouvelle à t'apprendre! C'est le
mariage de Hermann Weidner. Nous avons reçu les
cartes de nos deux dernières. Les trois enfants
mous de Mr. Weidner dont tous mariés.

vendredi Nous voyons souvent les Buccini et nous parlons toujour
au téléphone, et Dimanche dernier, en regardant ton portrait
tu as écrit ceci! Es ce que c'est là ta petite gamine
faite avec qui j'ai si souvent joué! et que nous tripplions
si we tank? Son mari est devenu énorme. Ils ont fait d'assez
longs séjours donc des nouvelles de Mr. Warner dans
mais ta prochaine.

samedi Je voudrais pouvoir t'envoyer le Herald d'hier qui
opérations nous annonce que, the Ocean Telegraph is a sure
thing! The Queen's Message to the President de
l'est. It says, The Atlantic Telegraph is at work!
votre The Queen's Message has come. That fact settles the
toute importante question whether or not the line would work.
elle The Queen to the President

bien à toutes honorable

Le President of the U.S. Her majesty desires to

congratulates the President upon the successful completion
of this great international work, in which the Queen
has taken the deepest interest.

The President to the Queen
Majesty Victoria. (and me).

Queen of Great Britain:

President cordially reciprocates the congratulations from
the Queen. Je vous prie de faire paraprapher ma réponse de son
message à mon parapraphe. Je ne sais que penser
d'un message de l'Académie only, that it is no great thing
de la Académie l'arrivée du message de la Reine
et des dédications, des Fireworks &c
Mais tout ce que nous en avons vu c'est par note
seule. J'espère que tout cela n'est pas a hoax

Et maintenant ma chie fille, présente mes remerciements
à ma sœur Béringuda et dis-lui que je lui suis d'autant
plus connaisante, que sans lui, je n'aurais peut-être
jamais eu ton portrait. dis-lui aussi que le portrait
est très ressemblant et que j'ai la plus haute opinion
de ton talent et que si j'avois jamais fait de reproches, il
seroit encore une autre job que de te reprendre. Il
faut prendre portrait pour toi. Il ne le fait pas avec
bonheur que je ressens depuis que j'ai ce
portait sur ma cheminée. Mais cela m'a fait
longtemps mon desire d'être près de toi.
Où je voudrais savoir si vous allez
bientôt au moins. J'achèverai de
vous dépecher à faire vos paquets avant d'avoir
fini une autre affaire. Il me semble que
je n'arrive bien au monde que de te servir.
Mais il faut que je finisse ce qui n'a plus
de place. Embrasse ton mari et tes chers petits

With love & every good
wishes my dear son Brooklyn Augt 14 1858
for safety of the embryo &

My Dear Son.

With infinite pleasure I
congratulate you on the birth of your dear little
daughter I trust ^{she} will live and be a blessing
to its parents; I am glad your wife is so
comfortable, it will make up your loss, I would
say gain, if I can be allowed to speak from
experience. Thomas, your have relieved my
feelings much in respect to poor ^{the} John. I have been
greatly wroong upon last he might want for
any comfort how could ^{keep} happy, therefore I wrote
you to let him have \$20- of ^{of} groceries and place
it to my account; he has acted very strange
not to inform me what he was doing, last letter
he said, I depend most on my sales. did not say
you must know ^{what} John and John has been to bis-
cinata on business. John returned by way of ^{W-}
went, to see Mrs. wife, which I was mighty
anxious he should do so he wrote that she was
very willing to join him and would do so next ^{or}
paying John a visit on her way with her
little family but she came not, so I was in
hopes of - would gain the season but he heard what
she said but he asked no questions.

I was really vexed, she said he was doing well but not
his business, "why did you not ask her what?" I said
he did not think it his business] said she was going
as soon as she heard from, Henry. I could not gain
that she was much enough upon at beholding John
or that she lamented sadly his ^{then} misfortune, from John
he deserves kinder treatment from her than that.
I presume she will go, when H. complies with all her
orders; how long may it continue no one knows,
I trust, Henry, will not get in any difficulty, if any
of his customers should be disposed to quarrel.
I am sorry your business has falen off, but cheer up
your clerkship will help John says you build to large
No you did not inform me that you was chosen for
for City, trustee a little honor I think. I hope you
will, succeed in your Road and you will rent
your house for the said, Hotel, to enable you
to pay us a visit or establish a business in New York.
continue to write me all particulars as proceed. I am
glad that you have reason to say that H. can do
better to remain than come home, I thought I could
see to him better and supply his own ^{wants} at least. It is a
pleasure to you that you are friends; what does he
do with his money I fear some one will cheat him do
advise with him if possible. I presume I would
think of any other means than open under his
circumstances, John feels sorry indeed for Hen. I do
not think he thinks of Cuba, he would gladly have
gone when her did but now he is sotted has his

comfortable mansion & offering
the Telegraph brackets for supper
and other work, lightning arres.
is mighty handy a good Mocha
in laying a, cable, aer of the
the grand, Atlantic Cable, w
excitement at this time, job
until there has been a trans-
continent, but I am inclined
thinks, yes we certainly understand
wife, would come home this sum-
told us as, Anny & Hannette are
the like ness, prove so good, I w
Thomas, I am out of all patience
which you have to depend on
faith of it coming, your may
the spot you must know be
like to kill him and little sister
seen any offspring believe. he do
time I guess the baby looks like
finly all the children has has
sister believe, has been poorly for
I am keeping house have a
one in the atic the gent
of Repuplic, a down man
I went with me away to M
house so to be went with them
of all I survey, I want for
portable just call on the peo
that.

she was doing well but not
not ask her what I said comfortable mansion & offsprings is doing pretty well at
[usings] said she was going the Telegraph brackets for supporting the wire on the poles
Henry, I could not gain and other work, lightening arresters of beef, you see if
he upon at holding John it mighty handy a good Mechanic - he went to assist
[his] misfortune, poor fellow in laying a cable across the Ohio river, but that is not
from her than that - the great Atlantic Cable, which there is so much
He complies with all her excitement at this time, John is rather hard of belief
intance as one knows, until there has been a transit from continent to
in any difficulty, if any continent, but I am inclined to believe, "What do you
disposed to quarrel. think", Yes we certainly understand from A. that your
I falan off, but cheer up wife would come home this summer at the earliest what she
John says you build to large told us as, Ann & Hamitic were both present It is fine
- that you was chosen for the like nose, prove so good, I would like to see them
honor I think. I hope you Thomas, I am out of all patience with that Master R.R.
and you will sent. which you have to depend upon, John has but little
- Hotel, to enable you faith of it coming your way I tell him you are on
ish a business in New York. the spot you must know best. Tell Franky, I would
similar as proceed. I am like to kiss him and little sister very much as I have not
to say that, He can do seen any offspes babies. he is quite a nice boy by this
home, I thought I could time I give the baby looks like your Johns boy grows
his own at least, It is a finely all the children has had the measles, all well
be friendly; what does he Sisters have, has been poorly for a smooth rather better
no one will cheat him do Barn keeping house have a open front to rooms
- I presume of wood
then her under his one in the attic the gent is a teller in the Bank
my indeed for Hen. I do of Republic, a clever man S. Chardon your Aunt
as he would gladly have B went with me Ann & Mrs Tapp, was going to help
he is sotter has his house so & he went with them there fore, I am now
portable just call on the fence to you he will say
that I have my wants supplied

I left Sister for certain reasons she comes here I go
there occasionally & stay with her when her husband is absent
which he frequently is as he is Superintendent of the Telegraph,
from City to Washington so lonely for him to be
alone in the house only a girl, she, who has always had
a mother at hand but, I cannot be the only one to
consider this matter she has a smile scarce ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~long~~
than I do I have good sky soon behold years ~~are~~ ^{are} gone, but
yes I might say most magnificent Thomas I sincerely
hope and pray that Annie will return to her husband
~~and~~ ^{and} ~~from~~ ^{a good help mate} to him better than before
you write of the \$ 600- I willing to do all I can
for you as the others if you wish to buy any place
where on they require only \$ 500- paid down and
will pay expenses and you will be ~~prepared~~ to pay
of the mortgage when they call for why do so
the \$ 500, will be one hand for you, to make the first pay
ment, suppose you get, to look around for you
I would advise it to be in, Brooklyn, as property ~~is high~~
in City - I took, my advice and does not regret
doing so, I can tell you, ~~the weather is very fine~~
but I cannot make up my mind to visit my friend
Hannay Burling, received a letter a few days ago with
with remembrances from all my children, I would
love to go exceedingly but I fear the ~~R R~~ sadly.
your Father's Movement is up, I like every well
why have you not written concerning it. We
all join in love to you, and family. May the
Lord bless us all. Your affectionate Mother

R. G. Hale

Metropolitan Hotel New York
Aug. 18th 1858

My dear Mrs. Whaley.

On my return to Waterbury a few days since, I was rejoiced to find your kind and very welcome letter of June 22nd. It was then too late to answer it by the last mail - And as the mail the other day brought me a San Diego Herald announcing the birth of a daughter to Mrs W. on the 24th of June; I now most cordially and feelingly congratulate you on this little increase to your family. I sincerely hope that both Mother and daughter are in excellent health, and may continue to receive this with every other blessing. I cannot describe the pleasure that it would give me to be with you now in S. Diego - I trust that a few months more will bring about this which I so much desire - S.D. seems a home to me indeed - You say that several persons in S.D. say that I have come east to get married!!! They were never farther from the truth - I have no more thoughts of it than I have of going over to Europe.

on the submarine telegraph. You will see by the New York papers what a grand display was made here last night on the occasion of the President's message, or dispatch, and the President's reply. I will send to May R. or Walter papers containing an account of the display. You see my dear Mrs. W. that I keep somewhat informed on San Diego affairs. By the way, I have been wondering where was the scene of the ~~most~~^{the} little gallantry referred to in the S. D. herald and what was the nature of it. It should have been something pretty gallant to get remarked in the paper. Perhaps you can tell me what it referred to.

Your letter of June 22 was mailed in San Francisco, and came all right. Letters directed to me at Waterbury will reach me safely. I dare not reply to your letter as it deserved and as my feelings urge me to do. You know what I would say - if I could only see you, at this most interesting time. I would say much, very much, that I cannot write now - I want you to answer this at once as you get it, or I shall not get it before I pack for California, as I shall probably go out about the first of Nov^o -

You will doubtless know I want to hear
what you have to say about it. I have
not written to you for better than any
other reason - probably because you will know what
I will say. You will know what
you think more, however, than I do. and you will know what
is best for me. I have no objection to the subject of names,
but I am not very good at naming the appropriate one to the
little angel - If you will allow me to
speculate a little on the subject, perhaps I
may guess the above, with Annie
as a prefix - How does it sound? Annie Angela! You must
say that's too much - I have had the pleasure
of addressing you on the subject, but you are
more interested in your own, and
you know that I would not, intentionally, be
guilty of any indecency in any matter of
yours. Should it have happened to guess it,
I will show you that you also deemed it
appropriate for your first daughter -
myself, I have but little
time to spend with you - I think my sister,
whose account I came home is slightly
better. Third daughter, though she is
still in acute delicate health - I came
over yesterday, and shall leave in three
days - I am now going on to
spend a few days - I
was at West Point in July - I find no one

Mrs. Annie G. Whaley
San Diego
Cal.

Letter to Aug 21, 1858

Major Ringgold
tells of fire on
the Plaza

San Diego, Aug 21st 1858.

Dear Major,

Your letter to my wife was received to day. She was glad to hear from you. I have not time to say much, but Mrs. Mr. wife, encloses her reply. I have to communicate bad news but the truth must be told, however hard reading it may be. Tuesday morning last I was aroused, between two & three o'clock by a loud rapping at my door. I got up immediately and enquired who was there, the answer was, "Fire!" Theaphay your store is on fire. I dressed myself as soon as I could and ran all the way. When I got to the Plaza I saw enough it was so. The fire was so far advanced that the flames were bursting out the doors and windows enveloping the building in flames. I saw them way, not the least chance to save anything in the store so I ran around to the back to see what could be done there. I found nearly all the liquors rolled out and lying in the street in front of I Macomaster Red's Store. There and two sacks of buckwheat that were in the large bin in the yard, some empty barrels and bottles and the rest I bought at your auction and the flour bins and all the things that were saved from the Cheap Cash Store. Many things might have been saved from the store, perhaps the greater portion of the stock

had I been there when Brown the blacksmith broke
open the store door to assure every body that there
was but 2½ lbs of powder in the building which
I could have removed immediately. Some few
had been going in when the cry of Powder was
raised and everybody withdrew at a distance.
Not even the shotgun on the counter near the door
any other things near at hand were saved every
body being afraid of the large quantity of powder
that was suspended to be on the premises.
When Brown broken open the door there was no
fire to be seen below through the smoke he and
Col. Hinckley says was intensely dark and they
give it as their opinion that even though the
cry of powder had not been raised nothing could
have been saved. but if I had been there I
think I should have rushed in and no doubt
others would have followed me. Now is con-
jecture regarding the origin of the fire some think
that it may have been set on fire and others that
it was occasioned by rats gnawing matches. One thing
is quite certain the fire originated upon stairs on
the side near Compton's shop. I left the store
that evening at 8 P.M. O'clock and supposed Col. Hinckley
would sleep up stairs the same as he had done the fire
the two nights previous. But it appears that he
did not sleep there at all that night. His days
he went there in the evening for his blanket that

he might
(thus being
true.) An
stairs for
Col. Hinckley
Suspicion
his course.
does a
in regard
public
the man
Walter
used to
picious
Lebris
or three
gloomy
The day
H. H. H.
Self Cr
Kelliher
of him
Widde
The fire
partic
Blanket
a ran
and.

he had neither lighted a candle nor drew a match.
There being no occasion as the moon was shining at the
time.) and when he came out he left the door up
the stairs partly open, as he had been in the habit of doing
and went down stairs and fastened the gate after him,
Suspicion was strongly against him, from the fact of
his connexion with Rhett Leroy in the lower country.
I was asked if I suspected any one and particularly
in regard to him. I could but answer that I did
not suspect any one, and least of all him from the
many favors he had received at the hands of
and Walter and yourself and which I had contin-
ually to expend to him — I mentioned these sus-
picions to Pindon and asked him if he would
submit to a private examination before two
or three of the citizens. He said that he would
gladly do so — The evening of the day following
the fire Mr. Ames, J. B. Gitchell, H. Steele, Henry
H. McPherson and one or two others besides myself
had H. McPherson and one or two others besides myself
Self out Pindon in the room back of Ames &
Kelly's Store. When he gave a short history
of himself, his connexion with Leroy and par-
ticularly as to when he was the night of
the fire — His statement was corroborated in every
particular. He was seen crossing the Plaza, with his
blankets by Bob Kelly, was proven to have slept at
a rancharia by Alvaro Lopez who woke him up
and accompanied him to the fire. Mrs. Robinson

Saw him at the turn of the Plaza with a
Squaw at the same time he was going to the fire -
~~Chase~~ says the gate were fastened and had
to be broken down. Cowdron says the door
up Stairs was open partly. One Mr. Keen who
had been up Stairs the day previous says that
he saw the candle and matches on the floor
so that his statement must be true. In regard to
his connection with Le Roy he says that it was for
the purpose of effecting a sale of a large wagon
to H. Muhammad and to collect some money
from Meager from Le Roy - five hundred dollars
of which was to be paid to Henry Whaley.
His statement appears to be in every way
factory to the gentleman except in one main
particular. And that was, the night before the
fire he had said to George Lyons in presence of Frank
that Maj Ruggles and Mr. Whaley had
grossly insulted him and that he meant to be even
with them yet in some way they least expected -
George Lyons states this positively. There is little remem-
bered a portion of their conversation but nothing regard-
ing the threat. Pierdon admits the conversation and
says that he may possibly have made the threat
as he was much excited with Lyons at the time but
has no recollection of it. That he does not know
whether Shaler have made such a threat as

Bryant

1858

You Walter and myself have always treated
you as a gentleman. This think of made at
all way owing to the conversation which Doctor
had one day between you and myself when
we talking of the lower country Jerry &
our you may perhaps recollect saying to
Charly that Jerry ought to be hung and any one
connected with him or something to that off. As
I have given you all these particulars minately
not if makes any difference now how the state
was built it can now replace all the good.
The loss is a heavy one to you as well as to
me but so long as we have health and strength
we may hope to repair it. I feel it very much as
it deprives me of all means excepting my house
and lots which instead of yielding me a dollar
are only an expense. I must now make a grand
sign when else as there is no chance of doing anything
him at present. I know not how you will consider
the transfer of stocks to me whether you will con-
sider me bound for the whole amount or the half of
it. I was however to take the stocks and pay you
out of the proceeds of the sale of the goods and from
the collection of the debts the goods are now being
paid them over I do pay you for the whole if you
think I am so bound would you not have to shed
that I have done them. I. Sir my

self bound off the my half and will most
surely pay you the amount as soon as
they are my power. At present I can only
send you what little money I have on hand
from the sale of goods and collections which
have been very meager - the liquors and other
things stored from the few I have moved over to
Miss Robinson which I sell at auction whenever
the election comes off and then are more people
here than at present. Possibly they will bring
from \$100. to \$150.00 this I will send you
and all the money I can collect from
the outstanding debts I ask not one dollar
Every cent I can realize anyways connected
with the business of the store I will remit you
as fast as collected for I know you want all
the money. You will recollect however I have
to pay back rent to Mrs. Herend - furniture
board to many, and wages to Compt. and
perhaps the payers but I hope to get the superin-
tendents to remit this - A pretty major I think I have
written you enough for the present to make your
heart heavy but I know you will take it like a
philosopher as I do - Your loss is great but mine
is greater I lose all my stock becoming responsible
for half of yours etc have nothing to depend
upon at present for a living - Aunt & Kelley
any debts - They have only \$200.00 here

to
of
way
the
so
ig
den
clad
ted/
your
co
face
so
and
have
in
a
nd
'll
\$.
00

stocks on hand for the \$4200.00 invested so that I think it doubtful if they stand as much credit as we did in proportion to the amount Capital. The Kellars are sadly down in the mouth. — I am got to State one thing very important in connection with the fire. The iron safe was heated red hot nearly the bottom over, partly up, one of the sides was red hot even when hauled out from the fire yet all the books and papers of any value were perfectly secure not so much as even scorched. I was very apprehensive of fire when Walter left our guy more and more so I think it was only three or four days before the fire I took all the books from the desk when we have been in the habit of keeping them and placed them in the safe. Had they been burned very few of the accounts could have been well set. I have not yet made up my mind as to what I shall do, but I think I shall be compelled to leave here. Mr. Churchill spoke to me that you had suggested that possibly the government might appoint what is called a Z.M. Agent, at a salary of \$150 per month. This would suit me exactly or in case of the return of troops the Clerkship as Z.M. Clerk. I prefer remain here if I can, as I am located and if possible I hope you will get me the appointment to either of these offices. Unless I can get either of these I see no way of doing anything here at present. I have written to General

Pardon me what the chances are at the river
and intend writing to Paymon to enquire
to see if there be any opening for me in San
Francisco - I know you will let me know
should you hear anything & do want to go.
It will however be sometime before I can leave
hurry as I wish to do at all I can and
the times are dull to be a bit to do much
in this kind I can say very little to this
you failing to see myself also believe me

Yours truly

Abd M. Shaler



I sent you \$65.00 per week, Hays less Express freight
\$1.00 paid. The San Antonio mail is just in. No
news from Doyle & Webster more than they are safe.
A letter either for you or to you can which has
been forwarded through the P.C. office.

I have since the grey horse at auction \$25.00

Less paid for buying \$150 Hay 50 \$2.00
Auctioneers com 50 1.50 3.50

which amount you will deduct from the \$66.00
and give me credit for balance 21.50 21.00 44.50

I gave the spucks to Capt Burton ~~he had~~
not pay the \$2.50 wire charge at his a/c

San Francisco

August 27th 1858

How shall I be able to thank you my poor dear Child for your kind letter, especially considering the circumstances under which it was written - I grieve beyond measure at the dreadful disaster that has befallen you and Tom - It is so hard - so very hard - and yet I have faith in the value of misfortunes, out of which often grow changes that in the end teach us that we should be thankful even for the heaviest blows that come upon us.

Oh my dear friend what words will convey to you the feelings of my heart, and tell you how deeply I feel for you under this distressing calamity - As for myself - I have not thought of myself, ~~as~~ the way it affected me pecuniarily, for one moment - To help me God it is of you that I am thinking - Tell Tom not to be foolish and worry his head about me - I shall get along well enough - Tell him to dismiss the matter from his mind at once, so far as I am concerned - Tell him not to send me a cent of money any more or I will be under the disagreeable necessity of returning it to him - I perfectly appreciate his kind and honourable feelings and that is enough - Tell him that this is no time to be adding to his trouble by supposing that his friends will not stand by him in his hour of need - You understand me, and now

I see you again - I have much more to say to you
but I have a whole week to say it in, and so for the
present adios Amiga mia — <sup>28th I went to my room last
night & read your letter - you must not laugh at me when
I tell you I sat down and wept like a woman - but so it was.
This morning I went to see R. E. Raymond and had a talk with
him about the prospect of Mr Whaley's getting employment in
some house up here as bookkeeper, and if there was any thing
else that might be suggested that he could do - So far nothing
had turned up - I went last night to see Mrs Gatewood - Mr
Hempstead had moved away from corner of Powell & Jackson &
I spent another hour in trying to find him without avail - This
morning his father told me Mrs Gatewood was with her husband
at their home in the Country - I forgot the name of the place tho'
I suppose you know - I then went & spent an hour with
Mrs Badenow to whom I delivered your message, receiving from
her a message of like import for you in return - About late
what I have to say is this - Hollister gave her to me - I promised
to get him another which I shall do - He had no business coming
to you about her - I will be down Tho' on the 21st proximo and
will then tell him to wait patiently - August 31st The steamer
from the State is in and I have letters from my mother wife & daughter
all well & expecting me home - There is however some probability of
my yet remaining in San Francisco - Sept 2nd 10 P.M. I am quite
sick with cold & fever - this fog & wind all very bad for me - I have
been for two days past trying to negotiate an arrangement for Mr
Whaley - & it was only half an hour since that I got through my
last talk - as I have to write to Tom I am obliged abruptly to
wind up my letter - I can't send a photograph this time - I
had one taken but it isn't good - My regards to all my
friends -</sup>

Adios.

Very sincerely yours

G. P. Amisroe

Mrs Anna E. Whaley.

San Diego September 4th 1858.

Friend Major,

Your favor Ind recd is to hand giving
me much happiness at the manner in which you
take things, but I cannot think of retaining funds
in my hands belonging to you except some very
trifling necessity should compell me and then
I shall feel much obliged to you for their use. At
such time as I can refund the same, we have
had very bad luck indeed, but perhaps there may
now be a change for us. I have as yet collected
but \$14.00 of the outstanding bills. They are mostly all
good, and will be paid in the course of time. You
must allow me to send you what I can by each
steamer and not think of sending it back to me.
I have no use for money; whatever except to pay my
debts as I see no chance of doing any business here
present. My sole object is to be free entirely from debts
and thus I shall feel no concern for the future. I
have had one good streak of luck since the Jing-
Mongat has paid my bill of \$170 on the
amount due and I have given him a receipt in
full. This enables me to pay Harry 100, get
the tim for roofing my house and the balanced
of \$300.00 I reserve to pay Mairland in case I
can effect a compromise with him.

very much particularly as I must remain here
long time to wind up affairs. and if I could get
the appointment I would be willing to remain here
altogether till such time as things are settled and then
commence business again - I like the climate of this
place all my interests are here and I should
be better satisfied to remain than to go to San Francisco.
But at the time any I can hope to make very
little and most of necessity leave. I like your pro-
position very well to go to San Francisco and the
business you propose would suit me very well.
It would certainly be an advantage to get into a house
already established. You mention the one of Elliot & Bee
I am not acquainted with either of them but ad-
doubt I should like them if you think so - But if they
are doing so very well I scarcely think they will admit
a third partner without Capital. Help he was willing to accept
either a stated or a small proportion of the profits. and
if that is the arrangement I think it would be preferable for all
parties for you to enter as a Clerk, and then at the end of
six months or a year if we agreed, I might enter as a
partner with whatever Capital I could invest. By this
means I should become acquainted with the men, their
nature of their business and run no risk who lead and
they would enjoy the same advantage respecting and
that I leave to you to make such arrangements as will
be most satisfactory without obliging anything to them I
now communicate. and when you come down

San Francisco Cal
Sep^r 17 1858

My dear Whaly

I expected fully to come down on this
boat but have received no funds from the East
so I shall have to put off my visit - I find
myself thus at the last hour, and consequently
hard up for time to write fully - I have just
seen Mr Elliott whom the more I see the more I
like - He informs me however that they cannot make
arrangements now to employ any more ~~other~~ Clerk help - and
indeed since writing to you ~~I have~~ ~~the~~ come to the conclu-
sion that you could do better than accept any position
of the kind - I have seen both Ellis & Fargo and
had a very satisfactory talk with both of them. They
~~both~~ say that whatever amount of goods in their
line you want to open a new business, is perfectly
at your service - If it is simply a question of goods
you can get whatever you want - The thing is to
select such a place to do business in, as shall be
suitable - I took up your note to Fargo & send
it herewith \$168.⁸⁷/₁₀₀ - and passed \$100. to your credit

on my books — I send you Mellus bill for
the wine I bought in Los Angeles - I think
you gave me credit for \$20 - you see it was
a little larger — I am very much delighted
to hear of your being likely to get in some of
your outlandish matter — I do think you ought
to quit S. Diego — San Francisco is quite prosperous
now & never was there a better time to begin business
— I saw Colonel Swords about appointing a government
agent at San Diego — he says there is no use for
one — ~~I~~ can't employ one — No farther letter
from ~~Walter~~ — suppose he has reached home

12 at night — Mr Elliot told me of a man who wanted
a partner to go into business with him — but had forgotten
his name and address generally — but recollected that he
referred him to Mr Farwell of the Alta — To Farwell I went
and he informed me that the man's name was A. W. Russell
that he lived in Santa Rosa where he was going into business
and that I would probable find Russell at the Americans
Exchange — From Farwell I got to know all about
Santa Rosa — which is ~~is~~ the County seat — it is 50 miles
from here 16 of which is by land the rest on the bay —
it contains 4 or 500 inhabitants in the town, but has a
rich surrounding country doing pretty much a cash sort

business - The vote of the County is about 3000 - and
the bulk of the population is around Santa Rosa

- He thinks the opening a first rate one - Elliot thinks
so too - I busared up (or tried to) Russell, but he
was not at the American Exchange, nor could I
trace him - I throw out these ideas for you to

consider - Business is looking up wonderfully
up here - The Fraser River excitement will bring
10,000 people into Cal^{if} and they will go no farther

- I feel quite sure you would go right ahead if
you could only get under way either to Santa Rosa
or other suitable place - Santa Rosa is a beautiful

place - so says Mr Farwell - He says the valley
is peculiarly productive - and as a residence can't
be beat in California - I shall not apologize
for going into these details - for I believe you
know that my interest in your welfare is

genuine - Write me by return boat - Remember
me to all my friends - to River, Rose, Pendleton
and all - I shall probably be down next boat
if the money comes - adios - adios

G. H. Pringle

Please find out without saying any thing to
Mr Rose, whether his copper ore is attached.

or not - Morse may tell you - I could
have sent the whole of it to New York
the other day; but I did not know the
fact about which I inquire, and therefore
I would not let the ship go down on an
uncertainty. I had a positive offer - I'm
afraid to tell old Rose so - Other offers
may occur and it would be well for me to
be able to act at once otherwise the occasion might
slip - the party would have gone to the expense
of getting ~~the~~ all on board - but not made
any further advance until they had returns -
talk to Morse about it - I would like to help
mr R if I could - But I must be prepared
to act at once - I hold Mr Rose's power yet
unrevoked - but would like to be certain that my
acts under it would be fully recognised - but
first of all is there any law on the are - that's
the point -

Your friend

F.H.O. Maynard

J. Whaley Esq

My time & place are out
Excuse haste -

San Francisco Cal.
Sept 18th 1858

My dear Mr. Whaly

Instead of coming down to San Diego as I had expected to do, I find myself almost at the last minute obliged to give up the trip, at least by this boat - My funds did not arrive as I expected, and hence my disappointment - You will thus find this letter not such a one as I would like to have sent you, as my hands are chock full of matters to be gotten in order for the departing mail steamer - Since I wrote you last, my life has run pretty much the same round of monotony - It might seem strange to most persons but it is most true that there was about my life in San Diego a something that this great city cannot furnish - I weary of the noise & bustle & artificiality and sigh for my old solitude - The Plaza was quiet and dusty and doggy, but then I had grown used to it and all the accompaniments around and about San Diego were such as made life swim along ^{more} much to my liking than in this place - As I sit here now, writing to you, the image of the beautiful

day comes into my mind - the New Town roads that skirt it so delightfully & where as the sun was sinking down I used so often to enjoy the deliciousness of the evening air in my fast drives with my friends - Oh those were days - days that have none to match them here - But I am growing sentimental - and must force myself away from dwelling on the past.

Of friends I am not in want in the metropolis - friends devoted & true - Naglee is more than a brother to me - and there is nothing he would not do for me; but the truth is, I am a man of strong fixed habits, and a change of locality, suddenly, leaving me wrecked as it were upon an unknown coast - I have as yet found no place ~~except~~ where I can find myself as it were at home - no easy, comfortable, welcome domicil that can substitute itself for South Park, where as you know I used hazardously to risk boring you at all hours, because you always welcomed the old man and always told him that he didnt bore you - You tell me I must not go to the theater too much, otherwise I shall not enjoy it, should it so come to pass that you should find yourself in San Francisco and myself your escort to that resort that you

so much to be to endeavor I want to Madam acting - It like fair to edition pass and the f overla when I d round been to I cant since I sup not c Mr. J. 3. or find tired

so much like - Don't be a bit afraid - I promise you
to be the gayest of the gay, and put out all my best
endeavours to make your hour be one of enjoyment -

I went to the French theatre last Sunday evening & saw
Madame Castillon & Monsieur Bonnet in a rare piece of
acting better than any thing I have seen yet in the city -

It like to have killed me - The mechanic's Institute
fair has been open for a fortnight - a wondrous exhi-
bition of fruit-inventions, pictures &c - I generally
pass an hour there in the evening walking about
and seeing the sights - I am on the committee of
the fine arts - Boston Adams will be down by the
overland route he thinks - I don't often see him -
where do I have to sent him up - He is always flying
round somewhere & seldom to be found - I have not
been to see Mrs Mayes yet, I feel quite ashamed but
I can't help it - I have only seen Mrs Dayle once
since I wrote you, the day before the Senator came up -
I suppose she was much disappointed that Mr D did
not come up - She expect to return to San Diego -
Mr Badenou I have not seen either since I wrote to
you - I intend going there tomorrow - but in truth I
find visiting very stupid - I am getting old and
tired of making the effort to talk to people -

Please tell Mr Whaley to say to Mr Noyes &
Mr Pendleton that I will write to them if I
do not come by the next boat, but that
there is every probability of my being down -
Do write me a long letter as you promised -
and give me all the most interesting items -

Most sincerely yours

W. A. Frazee

P. S. Please excuse my very hasty letter

Dan Diego Cala
Sept 21st 1858

Brig Ringgold
Dear Sir

Mr Whaley
requests me to answer some
inquiries made by you in
regard to Mr Rose Mine.

The Copper Ore is
mortgaged to Yolo but
Mr Rose has I believe the
privilege of shipping it.

It is about 6 miles from
the coast and it would
take several weeks to
haul it to the landing.

I told Mr Rose a few
moments ago that a party

in San Francisco had
written making inquiries
about his Copper Ore, if
it was for sale &c — not
wishing to elate him too much
by stating the whole facts as
he might "go off half cocked"
and he said that a party
with whom he has been in
correspondence in San Fran
has come down to look at the
mine on this steamer, and
he should probably make
a trade with him. But he
would let me know so that
I could write more fully
next steamer.

I remain

Yours or in haste
E. W. Morse

San Francisco
Oct 2nd 58

My dear Whately

Again at the last moment I find myself writing to you - my trip south being again postponed unavoidably - I have received word from the States to the effect that I may come home at once if I choose, or whenever I choose on a furlough, but that I cannot be ordered at present - This don't suit me at all - I am too much crippled in the funds to think of taking a furlough, at least just now - I think it pretty well reduced to a certainty that I can remain in San Francisco permanently if I please - but my wife is opposed to it - that is she would greatly prefer my coming East - so you see, time has got to develop more things than one -

Touching Santa Rosa I have obtained no further information than that it is a flourishing place and just the one probably to suit you - Mr Doyle knows the Mr Russell & will tell you about him - I wanted very much

to have seen you but the fates seem against it - I had rather talk than write about business a great deal - I wanted to show you my view of our matters and have purposely avoided writing about them thinking every boat that I should be able to come down - I think best however not to leave it too long - Of course when I turned the goods of the Store over to you, I understood it to be a sale, otherwise the reduction of 10 per cent would not have been made - again, I might, though I don't think it very probable I should have insured - still if I had regarded them as in part my property it might have made me think more of the matter & possible insure the goods - However I do not want to strain you an atom - I don't want you to pay me a dime unless it comes easy to you - whenever you feel it perfectly convenient to remit, of course it will be acceptable, but I want you to feel that I am anxious for you take it perfectly easily - I have not the slightest question of your making money in active business, every facility for which is at your disposal - so that altho' I feel

it rig
Store
weigh
ciate
that
Satisf
from
of an
interes
Preser
And
gree
to al

It is right that I should regard the matter of the
store goods a while, yet I would not have it
weigh on you a moment - I fully & entirely appre-
ciate your just view of these sort of things and
that any settlement we may have will be mutually
satisfactory — I fear my long winded letters
prove a bore to the Madam - It is the nature
of an old man to imagine that he continues
interesting long after such has ceased to be the fact.
Present her my respects if you please —
And to all my San Diego friends I send
my greetings — It is late & I have no time to trouble
to attend to - so Adios

Very truly yours
Geo P. Praygord

young people off
and very soon leaving off.

Brockton Oct 2nd 1868.

Dear Tom Thomas

I received yours of Augt. 1st, informing
me of the sad disaster, the loss of your stock of goods &
how discouraging it appears you are always in trou-
ble. I always said you do not make good calculation, what
is the reason at one time, you are building most extravagant
at another greatly at a loss, till well you do not dispair
you did not say what caused the conflagration, I am led to believe
you have enemies about you, I think if you had returned
home with your steamer or boat you might have done as
well as you have, as it is what you built so largely seems
concerned, why not keep your cash so that you will have
an apostle to lean against, I would not care how plain I
lived until I could amass a sum sufficient to begin a
business in some other place, but by your wife say honest
they, Mother knows not such remark; but it is I have lit-
tle, like my knowledge you say your large house af-
fords you no interest, what is the reason, you did not
say what was the cause, that is what I say the house
does not appear to suit you nor any one, I hope then
will keep his savings in case I am fearful he will
have a break down next winter we have expected

his wife & children on to go to Cal on the 5 inst your birthday.
it appears astonishing to me that she is so tardy about it
but, she gets all she wants, why need she care about time
or going poor hen, I feel sorry for his devotion; what can he do
It gives me great satisfaction to read that he is doing well. If
he is near, remember only one ~~worn~~ poor fellow, a hard case to
endure. I would not wish to insult him with \$20. I thought to help
if he kept his own house how does he accomplish the task of keeping
Restaurant I cannot tell. Yes you may be certain I was vexed indeed
to have to pay, ~~it~~; note it was your fault you ought to have sent the
~~draft~~ to me, then all would have been correct, as I have days, No I
did not even get a ~~sheet~~, or an answer whence I requested you to send
me & sister one, I was far from expecting it as a present. Therefore
you might have responded. Thomas, how can you be so thoughtless and subject
as not to name fathers monument, when ~~it~~ you made such great pleasure to
see up the money to do so. You must be greatly ~~in~~ trouble, as I always
admired your veneration, ~~for~~. Thomas, it really appears necessary that you
should have a bank to fall upon ~~keep it in~~ I will be your bunker
as it is most bad to put all your property in ~~fall~~ a very unsafe place
Why do you say you may be compelled to leave San Fran ~~on~~ account
of the Indians I have seen in papers, that they may be troublesome ~~now~~ ^{on} ~~now~~ ~~southern~~ ~~now~~
now let me know why was the troops withdrawn. If you ask ^{on} me for assistance
I will see that I must fulfill my engagement for the ~~is completed~~ first which
is near \$6000 then I have the iron sailing to you from when done I will
write to Gen, if he does not answer I am pleased to hear ^{on} of your and family health give
grandmother love to Frank, and Miss Lily, sister ^{to} John ^{on} Thomas grows
finely you had better despatch John to purchase a lot in B for you
write as soon as possible what is to be done I shall have my bounty
and warrant in a few days do you not Your affectionate son H. Whaley

New-York le 28 Octobre, 1854.

Ma chère Anna.

Ta dernière du 21 Août 1854. m'est parvenue par le dernier Steamboat ~~l'Albion~~
- ~~Jaydon~~. Tu dois te faire une idée de l'inquiétude que nous avons à ton égard lorsque tu me parles de ta mort que nous avez faite et de la crainte d'une troupe de voleurs de je me suis tout de suite procédé pour t'en faire en faisant mention de l'~~maladie~~ la plus importante ce qui n'a fait que redoubler mes craintes. Dieu veuille qu'il me voit soit bien arrivé ma chère fille car je sens que je ne pourrais pas survivre à un tel malheur. Je suis malade de chagrin et d'inquiétude! Oui! ma bonne Anna! nous souffrons des Hard times! je n'ai rien à faire et je sais ce qui nous allonge devenir! Mais mon plus grand chagrin c'est toi, ma chère fille! de te croire

exposée, ta et les tiens, à la féroceté des Savages
C'est une chose qui me fait frémir! Oh!
quelle idée terrible! Jusqu'au prochain
Steamer! quelles nouvelles apportera-t-il? I am so
Si Dieu te conserve tes jours Ma Chie. Anna and we will
having done bien vite permis mon. Il est devoir si
impossible que ton Mari se contente de son aventure
restez dans un pays où sa famille est. as the gre
exposée à perdre la vie soit par les misérables
Sauvages ou par les tremblements de terre? I hope to
Si vous restez dans un endroit pareil upon lea
vous finirez pas perdre tout ce que vous... where yo
passedy. Enfin, ce qui me soutient, c'est d'espérer
que j'espére que tu n'y es déjà plus. ledge in
que ton mari a en la présentation industry,
de transmettre à l'abribot, et tes ches I have
petits enfants) d'un pareil danger. I need
et que je recevrai de tes nouvelles par and pray
le prochain Steamer. C'est à dire, le douze Septembre
de ce mois jusqu'along nous sommes dans May soon
la plus grande anxiété. Adieu ma chie I cannot
fille. Nous t'embrassons ta et tes chers petits de au
du fond du cœur. Jamère affectueuse Cruelty
V. Q. Lannay. Bills me
States of

des Savage
! Oh!

Mr Whaley.

chain

My dear Sir

stra-tict. I am very sensible to the loss you have met with
d. Anna and we all sympathise greatly with you my
g. West dear Sir, and above all the danger in which
enter de you and yours are exposed. It has caused
dear us the greatest anxiety and we shall be very
miserable until we hear from you.

de terre? I hope that after all this, you will decide
to sail upon leaving such an unsafe place
give you where you cannot but be constantly in
ind' l'est dread of some misfortune. By your know
ledge in business and your constant
action industry, you deserve a better fate, and
to this I have no doubt, ^{but} that you would
danger succeed where ever you go. We hope
left you and pray you may all leave this place
, be always safe! and my greatest wish is that we
may soon see you all. As for my part
I must I cannot live in such a dread of my
cher. pett's dear Daughter being exposed to the
factions Cruelty of bloody men! such a thought
kills me. You can easily imagine the
inap. States of mind I am in under way

God grant that we may soon receive
good news from you.

We hope and pray that God will
protect you and yours and that you will
meet with the success a good husband &
a good father deserves.

Very affectionately
Yours.

V. G. Hammag.

P. S. Anna in her last letter wishes to know
if I received the two pictures. I have received
them both, together with the Twenty dollars.
and I sent a letter to that effect & two
more that I have sent since, in the
last one I mentioned ^{that we} had been obliged
to move & we are now at No 69 ~~69~~^{10th} Street
~~until we can do better~~

Please address your letters at school
to the care of Mr Underhill.

P
San Francisco
Oct^r 17 1858

My dear Mrs Whaley

It is Sunday night and the steamer sails tomorrow, and I have procrastinated writing to you until the last hour, not because of want of inclination, but because I have had more causes of unhappiness than one; since I wrote you last, that weigh very heavily upon me, and make me feel that my letters cannot partake of the character which they ought to have, to render them interesting to you - If I were in San Diego, my naturally communicative nature would probably make you the recipient of some of these private matters, but a letter is not the place wherein to develop them - I feel that if I were there we might, as you say, have some of our long chats once more, and may be my heart be lightened, as the pent up stream flowed freely - As it is I am very weary and San Francisco can not help me - You must forgive this down hearted strain, but Nature will sometimes have its way - I have received letters from my mother, Antone, Walter & my wife - Walter has reached home amid great rejoicings and writes me all about it, & sending his love to you & Mr Whaley - His intention is however to return to California after a couple of years - My daughter has become quite reconciled to my decision as to her living a nun, and is recovering her health & gaiety.

Of my probable return to the east see long, I begin to
feel that it becomes more so as time advances - I believe
fate has determined that I shall bid adieu to Califor-
nia for the present at least - My hope is to be able
to make you a visit before I leave, and if nothing
out of the way happens I shall be down by the
next steamer - If you answer this letter by the same
trip that takes it down, I shall know that altho my
letter be dull, yet that you take some interest in
it as coming from your old friend - I am very
much pleased to know that your mother liked
the portrait - Present her my respects when you write -
I hope you will not think ill of this letter because
of its brevity - in truth I am very unhappy and
unfit to write at all - I hope you will answer it
without waiting over a boat - If I can I will be
down on the next trip - I regret beyond measure
to hear of little Nannie's sickness - I hope however with
care that it may prove of less moment than you
imagine - I spent a week up at San Jose ~~last~~
time since - and made it my business to look at
it in reference to Mr Whaley - It is a very growing
thriving place and would suit him I am very certain
Tell Mr Whaley I received his letter & the \$50. he
sent me, and placed the same to his credit - The
Indian war in Oregon is over and all the officers
have come down - Tell Mr Whaley I will see Major

Wyse & Sent Bill about the Sattership for him at
the Mission if he wants it - Of course I do not think
there will be any difficulty in arranging it because
I can get ahead of every body else Maj Wyse has
not returned but will be down next boat they say
and his company goes back to San Diego

- I am tired of San Francisco - it does not suit me. Had
~~it~~ does ~~not~~ improve on acquaintance - Mr Bonny cattle
is in the City on his way home - I send a note on
Lathrop endorsed by Bogart, which I want Mr
Whaley to collect - and ask him to sell the old
gun for me ~~and~~ assure him of my esteem and
friendship - Adios - May the God of peace fill your
heart with it, sweet influences - and may his choicest
blessings rest upon you - is the prayer of

Your friend
The major

I did not collect ^{P.P.} and bill.

I will write to Mr Whaley by next boat if
I can't come down - but I hope I shall be able.

G.H.B.

I shall write occasionally to you, & send you
a copy of all letters to me in the care
of Mr. Charles D. B. Humphreath.
I have no time to write, but will do so
as soon as I can get time. I suppose Mr. Clements
will be here before long, & I will then write to you.
Please give my
best regards to Mr. Clemens, Mr.
Dobell, Major Brown,
and Mr. Wood if he
is here, and to all
the friends I suppose
you will meet on your
journey home again.
How dear and
kindly you are, & how
and especially - that you
cannot be reached.
To you we all see our
dear brother on his family
affair. I shall look for a letter
from you very
soon, & then we will be
much more in
touch.

J. St. John -

winter, I have not yet made up my mind, I hope I
mind whether I will do so, if I conclude to stay you need not expect me well, the
me in San-Diego until Spring. I regret it is a very
that my dear Brother Phillips and his kind &
yourself were so positive as to she likes me
my going to San-Diego when I wrote San-Diego, before
you last I expected to go this fall here, there
some time but ^{now} do not expect until twice each
next year. I am very anxious to see you all
you, often think of you all. of course

I was Poole & congrad
quite surprised as well as delighted to her family
to see Mr Clemens, I only saw him once & I will have
that is at home he called twice but I wrote me
was out the first ^{time} through afterwards how soon you
saw him down town he told me he Mr Clemens
had seen Mr Hoof, I have not seen Derby over
him since he came from the U.S. I have an
States, he never called to see me before I left,
I expect he has entirely forgotten Major Brown.

to my wife, I hope he has

Mrs Mason and family
I expect are well, the baby has grown very much,
I regret it is a very fleshy child. Mrs M desires
and her kind remembrances to you all, says
as to she likes Benicia much better than
old San-Diego, being very pleasantly situated
fall here, there is a fine Prof band plays
until twice each day and as you know I
hope to see have a great deal of music in my sojourn
of course enjoy it exceedingly. Tell Mrs
was Peely & congratulate her on the addition
brought to her family & suppose before long
you once I will have the same to say to you,
but I wrote me a good long letter tell me
nowwards how soon you expect your wife's
you he Mr Clemens told me that Mr & Mrs
old San-Diego were in San-Francisco I did
not have an opportunity of seeing them
me before I left. I hear that our friend
Colonel Major Brown has been ordered to Texas.

My dear Uncle was well when I heard
from him last. My health is improving.
I think this climate agreed with me
better than that of San-Juanicas, don't
think I can live there, which I regret
very much. Now are you pleased with
San-Diego, you have now been there long
enough to know whether you will like
it - as your name, I think the Climate
the most delightful in the world
and that is the opinion of all those
who have ever been there. Tell me if
you are pleasantly situated and how
you enjoy yourself. God bless you my
friend, believe me I do not forget - You
very often, I think of you and the
many pleasant hours we have spent
together, may we again be as happy.
Please give my kindest regards to Mr.
Whaley till him not to forget his promise
to me & I shall expect it to be fulfilled.

With love to you - D.

Mr. Thomas

Globe & T. Number 944858.

It has been a long time since I have heard from you, although I think I wrote you last - I have seen Mrs. Schuler & have done the State of California. She would like much to see you with us. I have accumulated quite a sum since my return from New York last - I don't know what I did in New York, but I don't know what I did in Oregon. Since my arrival in Oregon I have seen the Clarks, & the old Johnsons whom I have left since I know here, but I have had the usual visitors & have remained here. I have been very interested in politics, & having no wife or money I should like much to make you a visit if I could leave the office - after next year if I am fortunate I am in hopes of obtaining a Contract to Survey East of the Cascades from town - when I can have time - & will then go to San Francisco & am in hopes after next year I shall be in a position to make some headway, & then will clear off old debts & have sufficient means to take care of a good legal & medical practice to earn last year to day my wife complained - I she is lessening the time here & my wife's health is not good to winter - this a family does not agree with her - she began a course last winter & is again troubled - & I think it will never

on to Laramie & from there over the mountains to the valley
of the Colorado - I have a chance of getting a place for the long
winter - would you like to have me trouble you a great
deal - do you think you will be in San Fran-
cisco next Fall - write - Let me know your intentions
- I will do all I can to persuade her
to spend the winter with you - I am quite worried
about her & regret my business will not allow me
to go out to her - Please write as soon as you can
and think of it - I have applied to the
San Diego Irons - It should take a day
to get an opinion on it - I have a sample of the former

The wife sends her respects to Mrs. Thompson
Please remember me of her - She should like
much to have a visit from you

Yours truly
F. D. Thompson

Brockly, Decth 4th 1858

Dear Son Thomas.

I cannot think of neglecting to answer your communication & first I am indeed sorry to hear that your little girl is so poorly I fear the result from what you write it is strange the cold continues so long. Thomas your loss must be sad indeed I should like to know how now how the fire occurred how ^{you} made out to recover and leave all your associations in San D. I should recommend you to remain as Major Lingfield has promised you the office he has, he has been much prepossessed in your favour they doubt him, I really hope and pray something will turn up favourable for you if the troops return to N. will execute the plan as Mrs wife says.

Thomas do not say the Fates are against you
amidst all your trouble you are no doubt
greatly favoured If times are dull why
you must expect bad times with others
I think you have had tolerable good busi-
ness which ought to enable to stand a dull
season. One thing certain if you could not
sell the goods it would be neccesary to get them
on credit but all this a business more
like you must know how is it with other's
store keepers in the place it might
be dull times in other places so that
may not do much better to leave your
property I am sorry that the way
you took did not come your way
is it two or three miles before you
I could not make it out in your letter
I shall say you will remain at
present I shall feel very anxious for
your welfare until I hear that something
good has turned up in your favour
I hope you will soon inform me
very soon I hear that Mr Franklin,
is doing a good business with some
others

I presume you have
this time well I think
well and they will be ha-
how nice children This
in one of my last letter
a necessity lost went to
ord \$1000, Annie was the
and he is to write on
If you want John
Chase for you he is
so with pleasure but
a reasonable sale by
could inform you at
might be gone so
what is to be done
depend on his judge
you must write on in
inform him what the
the money has laid down
enough and must be at
must calculate to pay
interest bases on on the amo.
you know must be ap-

y the Fates are against you
untroubled you are no doubt
If things are dull why
not had business with others
I had tolerable good busi-
ness enable to stand a dull
very certain if you could not
would be ready to get them

This a business more
now how is it with others
in the place it might
in other places - so that
such better No leave your
are sorry that the way
is not come your way
ten miles from you
take it out - in your letter
you will remain at
I feel very anxious for
the I hear that something
set up in your favour
will soon inform me
in that Mr Franklin,
business with some
others

I presume you have seen Annie by
this time well I trust all will be
well and they will be happy together they
have nice children, Thomas; I named
in one of my last letters that there was
a recent sett went to Johns for 800
or \$1000, Annie was to tell John about it
and he is to write on about it to John
If you want John to make a pur-
chase for you he says he will do
so with pleasure but if should see
a reasonable sale, by the time he
could inform you as you desire it
might be gone - so I do not see
what is to be done unless you
depend on his judgement, if so
you must write on immediately and
inform him what to do as I think
the money has laid dormant long
enough and must be at interest. You
must calculate to pay ^{taxes} interest and
expenses on on the mortgage which
you know must be paid promptly

Annie remained at Johns, from the 1st
of Oct to the 3^d of Nov I was sorry she
could not sail on the 2nd as she expect-
ed but, she sailed at last and has suc-
ceeded her ~~husband~~ ⁱⁿ fortune by this
time had indeed not that think she
~~estimated~~ as some would she said Mr
Franklin was very kind to write when
Henry was sick - She appears to esteem
all ~~the~~ ^{neighbours} pretty well. it was
a strange freak for her to leave him
and now return again but all is
right I hope, and will be hence
your sister gave birth to a son
on the 12 of Oct, quite comfortable
she has 2 sons and one daughter
fine children I will write again soon
all joins in love to you I send Franky
it pretty well I wish you would answer
such subject that I make up from you
might have named your father's
monument I say it is Most grand
but never mind I am sleepy good
night May the Lord bless you

Your Mother
Every thing contrary to number 100

New York le 5. Decembre 1858.

Ma chère Amie
J'arrive justement ta dernière du 26. Octobre pour laquelle tu m'envoies un disques pour ce 26.
J'ajoute que tu me fais place pour les
lettres et cependant je te demande
de faire quelques brefs grands blets
d'autant plus que je m'absente
tous mes week-end et crois que je m'absenterai
quelques mois lorsque j'aurai fini de
voir quatre ou 5 ou 6 mais elles se
succèdent. Commencez que j'apris les fêtes
ce qui me m'a rappelé que je devais faire
à peine pour payer ma pension et ~~que je devais faire~~
des vêtements et les maniéreront, il le
fait C'est de te faire donner un ordre
par Mr. Endicott pour des habits
et vous bien du charme il appelle
notre chère petite fille est malade
j'espére cependant que sa maladie
n'a pas une de ces fâcheuses et
que le prochain litter nous annonce
que elle est hors de danger. Elle ne devra
pas mourir, mais aussi je donne mais sans la
mort de son père qu'il me reste à vivre
une si longue que tu feras de retour pris de

vous certainement que cela servit pour le
mieux car je crains que ce pays ne vous soit quelque chose à faire à tout le moins le droit pas être bien
Salubre puisque tu as tant de peine à élever tes bonnes
estes enfants. Comment prennent-ils du froid? fin i
est en effet des maisons dont humides, où sur-
peut voir les saints qui sont froids?
en ce cas j'aurai l'honneur une robe de nuit
incandescente et les jours tenu au lit
assez bien. Je veux attendre le principal avec
les enfants. Mais D'accordance tu as pris
de l'air. Mrs. Robinson que j'aurai toutes
d'intend aussi bien que d'aujourd'hui
les enfants, mais ce n'est peut-être que
de ces longues expéditions dans les Andes,
qui fait aussi tâcher de prévenir les malades
ce qui est encore plus difficile et très essentiel
Ma chère Anna! L'oraison je sympathise
avec vous deux et que je voudrais vous
voir hors de ce bel air pays de sauvages!

j'espire bien que vous pourrez emporter
de vous en retard le plus tôt possible

Je parle de faire faire venir une bonne P. S.
fille que je pourrai pas mieux employer
l'argent à revenir vous-même? Enfin soit à
arranger tout cela pour le moment
et sansoublier que pas de nous écrire une

le faire par moi. et j'espére que ta prochaine
et soit cette dernière lettre que celle-ci. Soignez-toi
assez bien ma bonne amie et n'ete chagrine pas
à croire le bon Dieu aura pitié de nous et mettra
bien fin à nos peines si nous nous reposons
s, ou sur lui. Il voudra bien nous réunir
tous jours pour ne plus nous séparer.

Adieu Ma bien amie prends
bon courage une Mère en a tant besoin
et Dieu t'aidera dans toutes tes difficultés
bris ta pauvre Mère souhaiterai bien être près
de toi pour partager tes peines. Mais patience
jusqu'au jour où tu auras ton vieille mère
pour t'aider à élire ta petite famille et
tout ira bien. Encore une fois Adieu
malade Nous vous embrassons tous de tout coeur
tel et nous te prions de ne pas te chagrinier.
Cathare Nous nous portons bien.

La mire affectueusement

V. E. Lammay

bonne P. S. Amelle me force de te dire qu'elle a bien
eu du chagrin d'apprendre que sa chère petite mère
est si malade mais qu'elle prie, et espère
que ta prochaine lettre que nous attendons
nous apportera des nouvelles de meilleurs.
V. E. L. Gimander son

Brooklyn May 11 1861

Dear Son Thomas

I will answer your last letter in
order of Feb^r 18th & April 4th from Sams. It appears you speak of living
well & comfortably situated in a cottage of six rooms. I trust
you will continue to consult economy and circumstances.
If you increase your expences, I was glad you wanted your house
so well \$40 per Month, I think a common grocery is bad profit
if you appear to understand both life. I do admit that you
have a good faculty to make money but not one to take good
care of it, but, as you tell me it is your own business what you
do with your own money, but I must say it gives me great pleasure
to see my children prosper. I presume you did feel
a great regret to leave San D^r. I was sorry to read the same
leaving might affect your property there you were
so nicely fitted, but I trust all you do will be of good import
It gives me pleasure to hear that your greatest comfort is
in your family, as a compensation I hope your property in
San D^r will meet your highest expectations. I do say you
have had your ups & downs, considering the case you were
brought up in, but, you can understand and so can I
and have had to do considerable no one stood with extended
hand to me or would I wish to be in a situation to
require it, no I should feel the most sensible Thomas
in one part of your letter you remark that you have not
received a cent from me in ten years how do you make

out do you not give me any credit for paying Mr West I would do the
note all the goods you took ~~off~~ ^{home} with cash & besides my ^{wife not con-}
paying Flintoff note, this is more because you say I have ^{clearly}, I fear
not assisted you, I would not have the least objection to help I am sorry for
a son & family but no further, as I do not consider that my ^{she looks like}
~~duty~~ to go beyond my own, at this time I could not have ^{Leppa} then
favoured your wants. I am certain I felt greatly for Henry but came to see
if I had sent him monies it would only enabled him to ^{more} is in San Fran-
to here and would I do that when he left him \$100, but I told you ^{I am truly}
particularly not to let him want for the least thing and I ^{able} I will
repay you or do I think you would, or did, if you are out ^{increased} in
of pocket say so I am truly grieved for his misfortune and the ill ^{the sun rise}
he had to have ^{soon} ~~soon~~ ^{before} follow, she told us he was keeping ^{I want to go}
a Restaurant, at that time saying I shall not have to ^{worried} ~~work~~ ^{out} I have
now do tell me what he was doing at that time, you write that ^{I should be}
he was doing well, I ask what was his occupation, how gladly I would get his big
hand him assistance but not to fall in her hands only the pro- ^{I do will not}
cesses that is the reason I wanted to buy the ~~tell~~ next to ^{the} Telegraph
and told her to tell Mr, about, neither has written a line since who? wife. I dis-
say you to that, not that I would my best to aid Mr, on any account ^{Mrs. R.} of I
so that he has his \$500 - to fall back on, at any time, I shall write to ^{I intend to}
him again in a while I may get an answer ^{from} his Mother, I do to let it lay
I am much pleased that I was the means of ^{of} getting his nice comfor- ^{of a house}
table home for his family he had a great trouble to move every year ^{served your}
now he has his shop attached to his - it feels then I saw that ^{I must say}
it was just the thing he wanted so I said if call on me tomorrow ^{big} I cannot
get him I will ^{go} we will see to the ^{place} so we did much to our ^{gray little one}
ways young & library ^{for} my son to get ^{you} good room room to ^{feel highly}
satisfactor & the house was very bad it been for myself I could ^{Mother} not experienced more true heartfelt satisfaction then I said a good ^{thanks for}

West I would do the same for you if needfull. I begin to think you
will not come to your native home in a long time though you may
be my heartily desire to do so, restrain me many - I am glad Brantley talketh
I have lately, I fear he will be a long time ere he says much to his B.-grandma
to help I am sorry little Amelia, has the cold & give her a syrup of Epsom I am
very she looks like me she must look like you The girl is the picture of its
have shape, the boy complexioned more like He fair and flaxen hair a fine
boy but comes to see me with Mamma. I am glad you live out of town, so Mr. Silas
send more is in San Fr is his wife with him, I hope I will succeed in finding Mr. Baldwin
you I am truly obliged to you for your good advice, to make myself comfort-
able I will promise to try, to do, I say it is time. My lot in B. has
recently increased in value, I am about to sell it, as it is built up ^{around} I cannot see
he ill the sun rise or set, yes, I will remember the lot in Cey, but times are gone
aping I want to purchase a nice house for self next I am on the look
book ^{would} I have given \$9000 for 2 lots a stable & small house which
that I should have enlarged but it belongs to an estate but when John
by I would get his big chimney sending out its volumous of smoke they will stay over
the pro- lots will not advance greatly I must work his engine to complete works for
to the Telegraph I is a first rate man looks more like father as he advances in
what life. I despair of having a house now, if I wait for you to come home
account Mrs. Br. of Sam D must have been a kind friend my respects to the lady.
writt to I intend to give to H. & Harriette \$1000 in the Saving B. what good
mother to let it lay in a City B longer, you have lingered long what think
a compo- of a house & lot could you think to buy in Cey for \$1500 I think I have an
my year sawed your first letter which I read with pleasure some parts) Now to April 4
are that I must say your friends advice was very good and you have profited there
now I cannot tell why but I felt well pleased with your office you think the
No our gray letter inc. I say the first lot he could get the title, you must indeed
won't it I could feel highly complimented by Major Br., I hope you will give the Major my
Mother thanks for his kind influence, He do not complain of the compensation

Now how can you save your ~~canvass~~ money from 92 000. Then you cannot
ask for pity, to spend all that money, it is for you to decide. You can
write that you intend to send for your wife & friends I hope it will
prove a satisfactory end, and answer. You request me to call on
the Lannings, I went according to your desire on ~~one~~ and experienced
her politeness in a perfect moment, which makes me remember to stay
away from her like as I think she will do for ~~you~~ a best friend that
you are able to pay all expenses out. I would have no objection to see
Amelia. . . I do complain of your answers at times, but do not send
me, as always Wm Bay no I ask for no page, only a cousin
sympathy, to your Aunt, as you please Mr Bay, likewise, they
are pleasant people, and he a great business man. He is remaining
in Cal a 3 years then he returns to spend the remainder of his days in
B, with his wife and children he would put up plenty of signs to get
through. Your Aunt Pascilla, is very smart & comfortable.
I will get some likenesses taken on leather like the one you sent
to G in if they take them on leather in B — I think you have
written me two long letters which I hope was a pleasant task to you
I perused with pleasure and hope you will not weary in well doing
you will inform me how you enjoy your new office as I shall
want to know I often look on your lot that is to be and say, that
is Home lot I hope you wife and children are in good health
may the Lord bless and prosper you all. Last month colds
with sore throat prevailed very much, all of us had a touch
of it we have had the water put in Brooklyn had a large
celebration. It will be a great advantage to B but its con-
dition is very flourishing His mortality God to see what a city it
has become. I trust you will see one of these days. We all
send love to you and family Your affectionate Mother R Whaley